F-8-42 1813
Ceresville Flour Mill Built by William Williams
Mount Pleasant

Private

The Ceresville Flour Mill is significant to Frederick County and
the State of Maryland as one of the oldest grain mills in continuous
use, having been built in 1813.

"Originally the mill and ferry were offered for lease in
the Maryland Journal on January 17, 1795. On April 14,
1796, Hugh Reynolds and David Brayan advertised in the
Bartgis Republican that they owned the mill and had paid
a high price for it. The mill, lately rebuilt, was again
offered for lease by P. Thomas in the Herald on July 24,
1802. The original mill was razed, a new one was built
by William E. Williams.

Production of these products was done through water power
and later, electricity. In 1813, two sixteen foot
waterpowered, overshot water-wheels were used. Water
was indirectly powered by Israel's Creek approximately
one and one-fourth miles from the mill, and the dam from
the creek poured into the millrace which was two miles
long. The sixteen foot fall on the creek drove the
overshot wheels seven feet broad at eight revolutions
per minute to develop twenty-five horsepower. Water was
supplemented with steam engine power in 1850. Back-up
power was added in 1890, and wheels were powered by both
water and a gasoline engine."

The mill continues jts daily operation obtaining grain primarily
from the surrounding Frederick, Howard and Montgomery Counties.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Ceresville Flour Mill is a substantial three and one-half story random
limestone gable roofed structure with numerous auxiliary buildings which
faces north from the south side of Route 26 in Ceresville.

Built and used commercially as a mill since 1821, very few changes have
been made to the exterior appearance of the main building. The principal
facade is three bays wide and three and one-half stories high.

Entrances are located in the second bay on the first and second level. The
entrance on the first level has a replaced door with small wood lintel and
a stone indicating the date "1821" located in the transom area below a
stone jack arch. Located directly over this entrance on the second level
is another entrance with deep recessed paneled doorway with small five
light transom and stone jack arch.

Occupying the remaining bays on the first, second and third levels are the
original double hung 12/12 windows with stone jack arches. Located in the
fourth level are three double hung 6/6 windows with single horizontal stone
lintels. A vertical panel door with small frame gable roofed pulley shelter
is located at the top of the gable. A similar shelter is located just

below the second bay on the third level.

The main block extends five bays deep on both sides with the original
double hung 12/12 windows with stone jack arches occupying each bay, except
for the second bay on the first level of the east side which has been
opened as a side entrance.

The rear of the main block rises four stories high and is three bays wide.
A shed roofed random limestone addition accommodating a large semicircular
arch at either end once directed the millrace into the grinding operations.

Located in the remaining bays on the second and third level are the
original double hung 12/12 windows with stone jack arches.

The south gable 1is constructed of brick laid in common bond. Double hung
6/6 windows are located in each bay on the fourth level and centered in the
top of the gable except the first bay which has been removed.

The entire structure is constructed on a random Timestone foundation and
covered by a replaced standing seam tin roof with cast iron snowbirds and
replaced boxed cornice. One corbeled brick chimney rises from the northwest
corner of the building. Four pedimented dormer windows with double hung

6/6 windows extend from the east and west sides of the roof.

Numerous frame one and two story German sided and vertical board and batten
buildings including a warehouse, wagon shed, and receiving area, as well as
the present milling equipment are located on the premises.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ] _
The Ceresyille Flour Mill is significant to Frederick County and the State

of Maryland as one of the oldest grain mills in continuous use, having
been built in 1813.

"Originally the mi1l and ferry were offered for lease in the
Maryland Journal on January 17, 1795.1 0On April 14, 1796, Hugh
Reynolds and David Brayan advertised in the Bartgis Republican
that they owned the mi1l and had paid a high price for it.Z2
The mi1l, lately rebuilt, was again offered for lease by P.
Thomas in the Herald on July 24, 1802. The original mill was
razed, a new one was built by William E. Williams in 1813.
Williams experienced financial problems in building the mill.
John Davis wrote to Williams on July 25, 1814 expressing his
hope that his 'financial difficulties are surmounted and that
(his) masons will yse eyery exertion to get the building up as
soon as possible,'3

The new stone mill had six floors and two rows of dormer windows.
The machinery for the mill came from nearby Catoctin.. In 1826
the mi11 manufactured 30,000 bushels of wheat a year. 'The
additional output was 5,000 bushels flour, 7 bushels rye, 132
tons of meal and 180 tons of feed.'#4

Production of these products was done through water power and
later, electricity. In 1813, two sixteen foot waterpowered,
overshot water-wheels were used. Water was indirectly powered
by Israel's Creek approximately one and one-fourth miles from
the mill, and the dam from the creek poured into the millrace
which was two miles long. The sixteen foot fall on the creek
drove the overshot wheels seven feet broad at eight revolutions
per minute to develop twenty-five horsepower.® Water was
supplemented with steam engine power in 1850. Back-up power was

added in 1890, and wheels were powered by both water and a
gasoline engine."

lJohn McGrain, Mi1l Papers, Maryland Historical Society, 1977.
21bid.
3O.H. Williams Papers - Manuscript #908, Vol. IX, #964.

4The Herald, May 25, 1826.

cGrain Papers
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE %%EET IF NECESSARY
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

F-8-42
Ceresville Flour Mi1l (con't)

The Ceresville Mill Property was sold by a trustee for Williams in March, 1829
for $12,000.00 to Cornelius Shriner.b

In 1855, upon the death of Cornelius Shriner, his son, Edward A. Shriner,
obtained %he property. Upon his death, his son Edward D. Shriner, was willed
the mill.

In 19%3, the property was sold to the Felton family who operated it until
1947.

Finally, 3" 1947, the current owners, the Kelly family, purchased the
business.

The mi1l continues its daily operation obtaining grain 8rimari1y from the
surrounding Frederick, Howard and Montgomery Counties.l

6Frederick County Land Records, Liber JS 42; Folio 71.
"1bid., Liber ES 5; Folio 632.

81bid., Liber DHH 17; Folio 496.

Ibid., Liber 464; Folio 573.

10Most of the material has been obtained from the Ceresville Flour
Mill paper by Suzanne Bohn, Hood College, 1978.
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